
 

 

Finance and Performance Committee  - 15 November 2022 1 

 

BRECON BEACONS NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY 

 

 

Dear Member 

A meeting of the FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE will be held on 

TUESDAY, 15TH NOVEMBER, 2022 AT 10.00 AM when your attendance is 

requested. 

 

Yours sincerely 

 

Catherine Mealing-Jones 

 

Chief Executive 

BRECON BEACONS NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY BROADCASTS ALL 

PUBLIC MEETINGS LIVE ON YOUTUBE  

www.youtube.com/BreconBeaconsNPA 

 

Please ensure you mute your microphone during the meeting until the Chair 

invites you to speak. 

Should there be a comfort break during the meeting please ensure your 
microphone is on mute and that your camera is switched off. 

 

1  CORRESPONDENCE  

 To receive and consider the attached Schedule of Correspondence and any 

recommendations thereon (below). 

  

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 To receive any declarations of interest from Members relating to items on the 

agenda.  Members’ attention is drawn to the sheet attached to the attendance 

sheet and the need to record their declarations verbally and in writing, 

Public Document Pack

http://www.youtube.com/BreconBeaconsNPA


 

 

 

 

Finance and Performance Committee  - 15 November 2022 2 

 

specifying the nature of the interest. 

If Members have declared an interest in an item please ensure that you 

inform the Chair when you are leaving the room, so that this can be 
recorded in the minutes. 

  

3  MINUTES (Pages 3 - 6) 

 To approve the following minutes and authorise the Chair to sign them 

as a correct record: 

                         

                        5
 
October 2022 

4  PUBLIC SPEAKING  

 To give opportunity for members of the public to address the meeting in 

accordance with the Authority’s Public Speaking Scheme. 

  

5  BUDGET MONITORING REPORT (Pages 7 - 14) 

 Six months to September 2022 

6  PROJECT MONITORING REPORT (Pages 15 - 20) 

 Six months to September 2022 

7  CORPORATE PLAN AND PROJECTS UPDATE (Pages 21 - 32) 

8  ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

 Any other business that the Chair considers of sufficient urgency and has been 

notified to him in advance. 

  

 

SCHEDULE OF CORRESPONDENCE 

1. To receive apologies for absence 

2. Such other correspondence as, in the opinion of the Chairman, is of such urgency 

as to warrant consideration. 

Any enquiries about this agenda should be addressed to Democratic Services  



 
 
Brecon Beacons National Park 

Finance and Performance Committee 1 5 October 2022 

 

 

MINUTES OF BRECON BEACONS NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY FINANCE 

AND PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE HELD AT VIRTUAL TEAMS MEETING ON 

WEDNESDAY, 5TH OCTOBER, 2022 
 

 

 

PRESENT: 

 

Powys 

 

Cllr GRatcliffe (Deputy Chair) and Cllr HWilliams 

 

Monmouthshire 

 

Cllr SHowarth 

 

Carmarthenshire 

 

  

 
Merthyr Tydfil 

 

Cllr JDavies (Chair) 

 

Rhondda Cynon Taff 

 

  

 

Torfaen 

 

  

 

Blaenau Gwent 

 

  

 

Members appointed by the Welsh Government 

 

  

 

In Attendance 

 

Catherine Mealing-Jones (Chief Executive Officer) 

Stephanie Davies (Democratic Services Manager) 

Gemma Turner (Democratic Services Officer) 

Jo Williams (Finance Manager and Section 151 Officer)  

 

Apologies 

AEdwards 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



  
Brecon Beacons National Park 

Finance and Performance Committee 2 5 October 2022 

 

Mr Marc Ronan (Solicitor & Monitoring Officer) 

 

1 Correspondence  

 

The Chair welcomed Officers, Members of the Authority and members of the public 

watching via livestream to the first meeting of the Finance and Performance Committee. 

  

Apologies were received from Canon Aled Edwards. 

 

2 Declarations of Interest  

 

No declarations were received. 

 

3 Public Speaking  

 

No requests were received. 

 

4 Local Development Plan Annual Monitoring Report 2021-22  

 

The Democratic Services Manager highlighted an amendment to the Scheme of Delegation 
referring to quoracy that had been posted on the Authority website; and that this was in 

line with the delegation given to the Monitoring Officer by the Authority at the 1 July 

2022 AGM meeting. This amendment allows the committee to be quorate for this 

meeting. 

  

Members asked about the risks relating to the phosphates and whether extensions would 

be issued. They were advised that extensions would not be given and that this would have 

an effect on much needed housing in the area and meeting objectives set out in the Local 

Development Plan – this is a massive ecological issue that requires a concerted effort 

across a number of key players to address. 

  

Members also asked how we were performing compared to other local authorities and 

how we could manage expectations. It was noted that the Brecon Beacons National Park 

is at a disadvantage due to its extensive areas that are protected for environmental value, 

so it would perform poorly compared to others; but that Annual Monitoring reports from 

other local authorities would be published at the end of the month and that these could 

be used to determine performance. Officers stressed that recipients of the report in 

Welsh Government were aware of the issue and would not be surprised by the 

Authority’s failure to deliver in this aim. 

  

It was noted that although this was an issue effecting all local authorities, there wasn’t as 

much information in the public domain about it as carbon and climate change issues, and 

that all public bodies had a duty to educate people on the issue. 

  

RESOLVED: to agree that the Local Development Plan Annual Monitoring 

Report 2021-22 be submitted to Welsh Government and published on the 

National Park Authority website by 31 October 2022 

 

5 Budget Monitoring Report  

 

Page 4



  
Brecon Beacons National Park 

Finance and Performance Committee 3 5 October 2022 

 

Member noted the report given by the Section 151 Officer. The Section 151 Officer 

emphasised that information reported on refers to Q1 so is historical. 

  

Members asked about the Reserves available to the Authority, and which Reserves the 

report was referring to. The Section 151 Officer clarified that the report referred to the 

General Reserves for core activities, and that the Authority also had Earmarked Reserves 

and Capital Reserves. The same Member also suggested that the Authority should be 

looking at what other local authorities were doing to build and strengthen their reserves. 

  

Members asked for assurance around how the Authority would manage the impacts, given 

the size of the Authority, and how we would provide stability for Officers. The Chief 

Executive noted these concerns had been touched on in papers that went to the full 

Authority meeting held 30 September (Review of Capability & Capacity and Income 

Diversification) and that work was being done to make the most of the opportunities 

available to the Authority. She also advised that the three Welsh Parks were working 

together on a joint statement to brief Welsh Government Officials on the impact of the 

current financial position on delivery and resilience in the Parks and to support a 

forthcoming meeting with the Minister for Climate Change. 

  

Members also noted the high spend on consultants and asked if this would be an ongoing 
expense and what the Authority was doing to address this. Officers noted the consultants 

were largely for roles required to fulfil statutory requirements, and while efforts had been 

made to cut down by focusing on what was essential, this was not always possible due to 

the statutory functions of these roles. Members were assured that a recruitment process 

was underway and that the Director of Planning and Place was also undertaking a review 

of staffing needs and directorate structure to address this. 

  

 

6 Projects Monitoring Report  

 

Cllr Gareth Ratcliffe left the meeting. 

  

Members noted the report given by the Section 151 Officer. The Section 151 Officer 

informed Members that there would be a more substantial update at the next meeting 

and that this report did not refer to the SLSP funding, as this had not been awarded at the 

time reported on. 

  

Members requested a conversation with the different directorates on different projects 

they are working on at future meetings to get better oversight on what projects should 

be prioritised. The Chief Executive commented that this item related to project spend 

rather detail, and assured the Committee that more both would be covered in further 

detail at upcoming meetings. 

 

7 Corporate Plan Progress Report  

 

Members noted the report given by the Chief Executive on behalf of the Program and 

Portfolio Manager. She highlighted that the Authority was actually tracking green for the 

Carbon literacy programme, which was better than the Amber noted in the report. 

  

  

Page 5



  
Brecon Beacons National Park 

Finance and Performance Committee 4 5 October 2022 

 

 

8 Any Other Business  

 

No other business was raised. 

 

 

 

 

Signed as a correct record 

Chairman of the Finance and Performance Committee 

 

 

Page 6



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  F&P 15-11-22 

1 of 4 

To: Finance and Performance Committee, 15th November 2022 
From: Jo Williams Finance Manager & S151 Officer 
 
 

Budget Monitoring Report 

 
 

Decision Required YES ☐ / NO ☒ Agenda Item 5 

 

Recommendation 

Note the contents of the report and appendices. 

 

 

 

 

Key Messages 

 An overspend against profiled budget of £72.5k resulted from Q2 core 
activities. 

 Additional budget pressures to those reported at Q1 are identified.  

 Planning consultancy cost is expected to reduce materially in Q3. 
 

 
  

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  F&P 15-11-22 

2 of 4 

Background 

 
Appendix 1 shows an overall overspend for core activity against the profiled budget 
of £72.5k, compared with £54k at the first quarter end. Planning and Place and 
Programme Manager directorates continue to have large overspends, mainly due to 
consultancy costs but in the former case due also to additional HQ costs and 
overspends at our visitor sites.  
 
Appendix 2 gives a cost centre variance analysis across the directorates with notes 
on the main variances in Column Z. Many cost centres have significant salary 
underspends due to vacancies. However, recruitment is ongoing for these positions 
and for new roles and the Q3 position is expected to reflect this with many of the 
underspends reduced.  
 
Directorate summary 
 
The main changes since the June quarter have occurred in the Planning and Place 
directorate where the overspend has increased by £62k. The overspend in 
development control has reduced by over £20k as a result of applying the full year 
contractor budget to consultancy and IT licence costs and continuing vacancy salary 
savings. Planning income has also remained close to budget. 
However, there have been significant overspends at the Waterfalls Car Park and we 
have been notified of an undercharge, relating to the last three years, from our HQ  
landlord of £52k -the half year portion of which is shown in Appendix 2. 
Further energy and utilities price increases have resulted in material overspends at 
the main Visitor Centre where there has also been loss of rental income.  
 
The underspend in the Nature and Climate Change directorate has increased by 
£23k mainly due to continuing salary underspends and SLSP grant contribution. It is 
expected that both of these variances will reduce significantly during Q3 as posts are 
filled and SLSP projects are progressed. 
 
The Programme Manager directorate has remained at the same level as in Q1, 
mainly comprising consultancy at a £40k overspend and IT and Finance items, each 
under £10k, that are likely to be charged to other directorates in due course. 
 
Finally, the Chief Executive’s directorate has an increased underspend in Public 
Affairs of £15k being further salary underspends during the quarter. 
 
Budget Pressures Ahead 
  
The implementation of the pay award continues to be the most challenging budget 
pressure for the year. Its expected impact together with other inflationary pressures 
was recently provided to Welsh Government and we await a response as to 
additional financial support that can be given. We expect to make the first payment 
to employees under the agreement within the next two months, backdated to April 
2022.  
 
The additional costs for our HQ use are unwelcome and we will explore settlement 
over the longer term to mitigate their effect. There are two planning-related legal 

Page 8



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  F&P 15-11-22 

3 of 4 

cases ongoing, one at judicial review, that will cost an estimated £25k-30k which are 
unbudgeted. Further pressures are expected with our Local Development Plan 
obligations for next year and from both crucial communications work and IT costs 
where there are no firm budgets in place. 
 
 
Impact Analysis 

 
Financial – key finance reports 
 
Legal - none 
 
Diversity - none 
 
Human Resources – none specifically  
 
Sustainability – none 
 
Risk 

 
Financial risks central to reports  
 
Conclusion and Next Steps 

 
  

Page 9



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  F&P 15-11-22 

4 of 4 

Appendix 1: Q2 2022-3 Directorate Budget Variances -Core Activities 

 
Appendix 2 : Q2 2022-3 Cost Centre Budget Variances-Core Activities 

Page 10



P
age 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 13



P
age 14



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  F&P 15-11-22 

1 of 4 

To: Finance and Performance Committee, 15th November 2022 
From: Jo Williams, Finance Manager and S151 Officer 
 
 

Projects Monitoring Report 
 
 

Decision Required YES ☐ / NO ☒ Agenda Item 6 

 

Recommendation 

Members note the report 

 

 

 

 

Key Messages 

 Appendix 3 shows the financial position of revenue and capital Projects as 
at 30.09.2022 

 Whist some movement has taken place many projects are still at an early 
stage with high levels of unspent budgets-column W per the Appendix 

 Funding for individual projects has been traced in the estimates approved 
by the authority in February 2022 with notes in column X. 

 
  

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  F&P 15-11-22 

2 of 4 

Background 

 
Revenue and Capital projects have been progressed in the two operational 
directorates during the quarter and the % of budget spent has increased for many 
projects. 
 
 
Relation to Authority Priorities 

 
The paper -Appendix 3- shows significant budget allocations to project activity-£1.1m 
revenue and £1.4m capital. Further material amounts have yet to be allocated for the 
SLSP programme and Green Growth projects. 
 
The application of Welsh Government and other grants to project work that 
enhances and restores the Authority’s assets makes a significant contribution to the 
achievement of the Corporate Plan objectives. 
 
 
Impact Analysis 

 
Financial – inherent in the subject matter of the paper with financial resources for 
projects strained by significant increased costs of delivery. 
 
Legal – None  
 
Diversity - None 
 
Human Resources – None 
 
Sustainability – Budgets used to meet purposes of NPA in terms of sustainability. 
 
Risk 

 
Risks associated with project delivery covered elsewhere on the agenda. 
 
Conclusion and Next Steps 

 
Members to note the report as the Q2 update. A further update will be provided at 
quarterly intervals. 
 
  

Page 16



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  F&P 15-11-22 

3 of 4 

Appendix 3-Projects as at 30.09.2022. 

 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 19



P
age 20



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  F&P 15-11-2022 

1 of 8 

To: Finance and Performance Committee 15th November 2022 
From: Rotimi Akinsiku, Portfolio & Programme Manager 
 
 

Corporate Plan and Projects Update Report 
 
 

Decision Required YES ☐ / NO ☒ Agenda Item 7 

 

 

Recommendations 

Members note progress at the end of Oct 22 in delivering the 2022-2027 
Corporate Plan (Annex 1) and Projects update (Annex 2). 

 

 

Key Messages 

This report updates members on progress at the end of Oct 22 in delivering the 
objectives for 22/23 of our Corporate Plan, including the key corporate risks and 
an update on the funded projects.  

 

 
  

Page 21

Agenda Item 7



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  F&P 15-11-2022 

2 of 8 

Background 

To ensure we deliver our Corporate Plan, we regularly review whether we are on 
target. We also ensure that any events which could be detrimental to its delivery are 
identified as risks and are managed to reduce their likelihood and / or impact. 
 
Corporate Plan performance including the approved projects are informally reviewed 
on an ongoing basis by Directors and Executive Board members, and formally 
reported on a quarterly basis to Executive Board. 
 
The report contains an Executive Summary with key messages about performance, 
and more detailed information about the Corporate Plan and Projects.  
 
Relation to Authority Priorities 

Our Corporate Plan sets out the key actions we will take over the next year as we 
prepare to play our part in realising the Vision for Brecon Beacons National Park 
Authority – ‘Future Beacons which will underpin our corporate planning process for 
the next five years post adoption by the NPA. 
 
We note that delivery of some aspects of the Corporate Plan might be further 
impacted and limited by ongoing financial and capacity issues within BBNPA. 
 
Demonstrating Best Value 

 
Monitoring our performance helps us check progress and drive improvements in 
performance, efficiency, and the quality of our services. We compare our 
performance against Corporate Plan and performance indicator targets, as well as 
with other national parks. 
 
Impact Analysis 

Financial - Full details of the current financial position are detailed in the finance 
report and updated verbally by the section 151 officer at the meeting. 
 
Legal - There are no legal implications as a direct result of this report. 
 
Diversity - There are no specific diversity issues as a direct result of this report. 
 
Human Resources – Loss of key staff and capacity issues within BBNPA continues 
to be a challenge and the implications of the above on the plan of activities for 22/23 
will be kept under review. This has been detailed in the Chief Executive’s review 
paper which was presented at the September NPA meeting and the current resource 
position will unless addressed will significantly impact on the Authority’s ability to 
effectively deliver the Management Plan.  
 
Sustainability – There are no sustainability implications as a direct result of this 
report. 
 
Risk - The risks to delivery of the Corporate Plan and Projects are detailed within 
section. Each risk is supported by a set of mitigation actions item, with necessary 
resources aligned to these.  

Page 22



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  F&P 15-11-2022 

3 of 8 

Corporate Plan and Projects Update – November 

 
1 Executive Summary 

 
1.1    Delivery of Corporate Plan Actions  
 
The 2022-2027 Corporate Plan details forty key actions we are taking to deliver our 
priorities for BBNPA; these are shown in Table 1. 

 Of these, twenty-eight actions have a status of green / complete because the 
planned work for 2022/23 has been delivered as planned. 
 

  The other eleven actions are shown as amber / not complete; with the 
elements experiencing minor delays/issues emerging and are being closely 
monitored. 
 

 An action is experiencing significant delay and shown as red.  
 

1.2 Projects Update - Planning and Place 
  
All the projects within the Planning and Place directorate are on track to be delivered 
with no significant issues to report in the period up to Oct 22. 
 

 
1.3 Projects Update - Nature and Climate Change 
 
All the projects within Nature and Climate Change directorate are on track to be 
delivered with no significant issues to report in the period up to Oct 22. 

 
1.4 Risk Management   
 
At the end of Oct 22, the key risks are:  

 
 ‘Resource Availability’ - there is a risk that a range of inflationary pressures 

(pay, utilities, supplies and services etc.), coupled with a flat National Park 

Grant, will continue to place pressure on the Authority’s ability to fund and 

deliver its Corporate Plan 

 

 Organisation Resilience – there is a risk to delivery of services and viability of 

the Authority due to exceptional unforeseen mandatory expenditure re: 

planning, health and safety, redundancy. 

 

 Cyber Risk’ - there is a risk of a cyber-attack disabling Authority systems or 

infrastructure and the ability to deliver work across Authority interests and 

services.  

Page 23



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  F&P 15-11-2022 

4 of 8 

Annex 1: Progress with delivering the 2022-2027 Corporate Plan actions, at Oct 

2022 

  

 

We will conserve and enhance the natural beauty, wildlife, and 
cultural heritage of the National Park - NPMP 2022 - 2027  
 

  Workstreams    Key Actions 
 

Lead Comment RAG 

1 

We will have 
defined a strategy 
to increase 
woodland cover 
and have an 
informed policy 
target for 
NPMP21.”  

1 

Q3 Expert grouping 
established as advisory 
body for woodland 
policy development  

SLT Ongoing Green 

2 

Q3 Woodland policy 
targets researched and 
defined with all relevant 
partners  

SLT Ongoing Amber 

3 
Q4 Draft Strategy 
produced  

SLT Ongoing 
 
Amber 

2 

We will have a 
prioritised action 
plan for working 
with partners to 
improve key 
features within 
the Park’s SACs 
including riverine 
SACs and have 
an informed 
policy target for 
NPMP21  

1 

Q1 Lead on the 
establishing the Usk 
Nutrient Management 
Board  

SLT Completed Green 

2 
Q1 - Q4 Exploration and 
continued development 
of partnership working  

SLT Ongoing Green 

3 
Q3 Action planning 
phase for working with 
respective partners  

SLT Ongoing Green 

4 
Q4 Draft action plans 
produced  

SLT Ongoing Green 

3 

We will have a 
prioritised action 
plan to restore 
the Park’s 
peatland and 
have an informed 
policy target for 
NPMP21.  

1 

“Q1 Implementation of 
annual peatland 
restoration and survey 
plans, using SLSP, 
NRW funding (if 
available)  

SLT Completed Green 

2 

Q4 Liaison with the 
newly formed Welsh 
Peatlands National 
Delivery Partners 
Group, led by NRW.  

SLT Completed Green 

3 

Q1 - Q4 To secure 
funding for Project 
Officer continuity and 
capital programmes.  

SLT Completed Green 

4 

We will 
implement the 
ROWIP Work 
Programme  

1 

Q1 - Q4 The 
continuation of restoring 
the Park’s upland paths 
to appropriate standards  

SLT Ongoing Green 

Page 24



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  F&P 15-11-2022 

5 of 8 

5 

We will 
implement the 
Nature Recovery 
Work Programme  

1 
Q1 Appointed the VS 
Development Officer  

SLT  Ongoing 
 
Amber 

2 
Q3 Develop and submit 
the Phase 1 bid to 
NLHF.  

SLT Ongoing 
 
Amber 

3 

Q1-Q4 Develop the LNP 
and to implement the 
relevant NRAP actions 
(INNS, SINCs, Important 
Curlew Areas, Local 
Places 4 Nature 
projects).  

SLT Ongoing Green 

6 

We will have 
developed a 
carbon reduction 
and education 
strategy and have 
an informed 
target for 
NPMP21 Policy.  

1 
Q1 - Q4 Continue to 
deliver the Carbon 
literacy Programme  

SLT  Ongoing 
 
Amber 

2 
Q1 - Q4 - Carbon 
budget and policies 
definition.  

SLT  Ongoing 
 
Amber 

3 

Q1 - Q4 Delivery of 
carbon literacy training 
events with 
communities, schools, 
staff, and Members  

SLT  Ongoing Amber 

7 

We will have 
developed a work 
placement 
programme to 
support young 
people in the area  

1 

Q4 - Identify and seek 
funding for further 
training/ placement 
programmes and recruit 
accordingly  

SLT   Red 

7 

We will provide opportunities for understanding and 
enjoyment of the special qualities of the National Park - NPMP 
2022 - 2027  

  Workstreams    Actions by when  Lead Comment RAG 

9 

We will 
understand the 
feasibility of 
developing a Park 
and Ride for the 
A470 Corridor 
and have a plan 
in place to take 
recommendations 
forward.  

1 

Q3 Develop an action 
plan based on the 
findings of the feasibility 
study completed in 
21/22.  

GJ Ongoing Green 

10 

We will engage 
the Waterfall 
Country 
partnership to 
deliver priority 
projects related 
to improved 

1 

Q1 - Q4 Reduction of 
Visitor pressure at 
honeypot locations, trial 
shuttle bus service, car 
parking options, support 
the delivery of emerging 
CIO projects.  

GJ Ongoing Green 

Page 25



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  F&P 15-11-2022 

6 of 8 

visitor 
management, 
greater 
community 
benefit and to 
encourage the 
move toward 
sustainable 
transport models.  

11 

Conserved and 
Enhanced 
Historic 

Environment  

1 
Q1 The draft HEAP will 
have been shared with 
the wider partnership.  

GJ Completed  Green 

2 
 Q3 The draft HEAP will 
have been published for 
consultation. 

GJ Ongoing  Green 

3 
Q4 The HEAP will have 
been adopted  

GJ   Green 

12 

Canals, 
Communities & 
Well-Being  

1 
Q1 - Q4 The delivery of 
twelve community walks 
in 22/23.  

GJ Ongoing  Green 

2 
Q4 Improve 3.5 Km of 
canal towpath to provide 
multi use route.  

GJ Ongoing  Green 

13 
We will seek to foster the Economic and social well-being of 
local communities within the National Park - NPMP 2022 - 2027  

  Workstreams    Actions by when  Lead Comment RAG 

14 

We will have 
progressed a 
programme of 
work to make the 
National Park 
more accessible 
for more people.  

1 

Q1 - Q4 Develop 
programmes with 
relevant organisations to 
increase use of the park 
for health and wellbeing.  

CMJ   Amber 

2 

Q1 - Q4 Development 
and implementation of 
ten course modules for 
‘Local’ Ambassador 
training to communities “  

CMJ   Green 

  Organisational Effectiveness - ‘the way we work and deliver’  

  Workstreams    Actions by when  Lead Comment RAG 

15 

Programme 
Management 
Framework  

1 

Q1 - Q2 The 
implementation of a 
revised Programme 
Management 
Framework for 
monitoring all projects 
being delivered by the 
Authority. 

RA   Green 

2 
Q1 - Q2 The setup of a 
rigorous and challenging 
‘Pipeline’ Programme 

RA   Green 

Page 26



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  F&P 15-11-2022 

7 of 8 

Process for future bids, 
projects, and 
opportunities.  

3 

 Q1 - Q2 Programme 
Portfolio delivery and 
effectiveness to be 
monitored periodically, 
with a clear governance 
structure.  

RA   Green 

16 

Organisational 
Development  

1 

Q1 - Design and 
Implementation of a 
revised Employee 
Engagement Framework 
that is supportive, 
productive, respectful, 
mutual, and aligned to 
strategic Authority 
objectives that creates a 
‘Golden Thread’ up and 
down the organisation, 
generating direction, 
clarity, inclusivity, 
delivery, and a ‘team’ 
ethic. 

RA   Amber 

 2 

Q4 - Implement a CPD 
framework for all that 
supports and ensures, 
career opportunity and 
progression, increases 
resilience, improves 
retention, and provides 
agility and flexibility. 

RA   Red 

17 
Commercial 
Strategy  

1 

Q1 - Q2 Develop and 
embed a commercial 
strategy including 
income generation, land 
management 
enhancement, 
infrastructure, asset 
utilisation and 
renewable energy 
aligned to the economy 
of the park.  

MR   Amber 

18 Governance  1 

“Q1 - Q2 Review and 
implement revised 
Governance 
arrangements for the 
Authority including 
clarification of roles and 
responsibilities and 
committee and working 
group structure.  

MR   Green 

Page 27



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  F&P 15-11-2022 

8 of 8 

2 

 Q3 - Q4 Develop and 
training for all members 
and officers aligned to 
the review above 
including 
responsibilities, values, 
behaviours, and 
governance operating 
model. 

MR   Green 

3 

Q3 - Q4 Implement a 
revised Member and 
employee induction 
programme.  

MR   Amber 

19 Volunteering  

1 
Q1 - Q4 10 Volunteers 
are trained per quarter  

GJ Ongoing  

Green 

2 
Q1 - Q4 100 Volunteers 
are maintained on the 
Database  

GJ Ongoing  
Green 

20 
Corporate 
Services  

1 

Q1 - Q4 Develop and 
embed a Business 
Partner approach to HR, 
Finance & IT Services  

RA   Amber 

2 

Q1 - Q3 Review, 
develop and implement 
a new IT Strategy for the 
National Park.  

RA   Amber 

 
RAG Status Description 

GREEN  
Actions are on track with no delays/issues 
emerging 

AMBER  

Actions are experiencing minor 
delays/issues emerging and are being 
closely monitored 

RED 
Actions are experiencing significant 
delays/issues with improvement measures 
being put in place 

  

Page 28



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  F&P 15-11-2022 

9 of 8 

Annex 2: Projects Update, at Oct 2022 

 

 PROJECT PERFORMANCE UPDATE 

  Project Title  Total 
Value   
£ 

PERFORMANCE UPDATE RAG 
STATUS 

  G Planning and Place Revenue projects 

1 Gunpowder 
Works HLF 
project 

0 Project completed and final 
grant report being prepared GREEN 

2 Tourism Projects 
Dark Skies SLSP 

0 Project completed GREEN 

3 Culturescape - 
EU-funded 
Project 

0 Project completed GREEN 

4 Tourism 
Publications 

0 Project income and expenditure 
on publications and tourism 
schemes  

GREEN 

5 Geopark Interreg 
Project 

0 Project completed GREEN 

6 Waterfalls 
Country 
Partnership 
Project 

74,130 WG grant funding to support 
projects and officer time on 
visitor management initiatives in 
Waterfalls.    

GREEN 

7 Waterfalls 
Country 
Community 
Development 

26,870 WG grant funding for 
Community Development Officer 
post in Waterfall’s area. 3 days 
p/w for 2 years. 

GREEN 

8 SDF Strategic 
Projects 

208,552 There is currently £57,666 left to 
allocate for SDF this year, 
£11,321 for energy efficiency 

GREEN 

9 Volunteer Co-
ordinator projects 

13,880 Expenditure of volunteer training GREEN 

1
0 

Kickstart 40,443 Project completed March 22 GREEN 

1
1 

Small Steps 
Project 

4,600 External grant funding. End of 
project funding being spent on 
buses for social inclusion visits 
- any unspent will be carried 
forward and used on community 
projects 

GREEN 

1
2 

Place Plans 
Project 

7,000 Allocation to support future 
place plan development. 

GREEN 

1
3 

Local 
Development Plan 

5,000 Budget to support future work 
on planning policy 

GREEN 

Page 29



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  F&P 15-11-2022 

10 of 8 

1
4 

National Park 
Management Plan 

15,760 Ongoing work to prepare new 
management plan. 

GREEN 

1
5 

Green Growth 
Revenue Element 

3,520 WG grant funding. Rental 
agreement on Craig y Nos 
electric van 

GREEN 

  O Capital Projects - Planning and Place 

1
6 

Visitor Centres 
Green Growth 
Decarbonisation 
projects 

0 Insulation project at Craig y nos 
Country Park due to be delivered 
in November 2022 

GREEN 

1
7 

EV Charging 
Points and 2019 
EV purchase 

8,060 Project completed.  Remaining 
funding towards events van. 

GREEN 

1
8 

Heritage in Place 
Grant Scheme 

38,801 WG grant funded supporting 
SDF grants for heritage. £5,666 
of this fund left to allocate this 
year - will all be spent 

GREEN 

1
9 

Waterfalls 
Country 
Partnership 
Project - CAPITAL 

134,297 WG grant funding to upgrade 
site facilities including car park, 
toilets, changing rooms. Current 
expenditure is on Cwm Porth 
Facilities Architects 

GREEN 

2
0 

Historic 
Environment 
Action Plan 
Delivery - Capital 
Expenditure 

50,000 Funding will support HEAP 
delivery.  Not yet allocated 

GREEN 

2
1 

Net Zero 
Transport Project 

180,000 £70k net zero transport strategy 
and action plan commission 
underway 

GREEN 

2
2 

National Park 
Visitor Centre 
improvements 

168,884 £35,884 budget Improvements to 
NPVC funded from capital 
receipt from sale of bungalow.  
£25,399 spent to date. 

GREEN 

  Nature and Climate Change Revenue Projects 

2
3 

Wardens Works 
and Projects 

140,670 Budget includes time for mostly 
rights of way and access works - 
costs to be recharged 

GREEN 

2
4 

Access Revenue 
Projects 

218,250 Canals & Communities project - 
was delayed but now mostly on-
track pending some 
procurement and licensing 
delays 

GREEN 

2
5 

Access 
Improvement 
Grants (AIG) 

74,719 AIG now confirmed likely to be 
delivered by Wardens (1102) 

GREEN 

2
6 

Waterfalls 
Country Warden, 

107,530 OK, income from SLA, car parks. 
Cost is staffing primarily 

GREEN 

Page 30



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  F&P 15-11-2022 

11 of 8 

Volunteers, and 
site management 
costs 

2
7 

Ecology Projects 79,990 Invasive Non-Native Species 
Team costs 

GREEN 

2
8 

Nature Recovery 
Action Plan 
Implementation 

85,789 Staff appointed for the Local 
Nature Partnership 

GREEN 

  N Capital Projects - Nature and Climate Change 

2
9 

Wardens Capital 
Improvement 
Projects 

110,000 Includes Rights of Way and 
various other access projects 
and some car park maintenance 

GREEN 

3
0 

Access and 
upland 
improvement 
Projects 

102,001 Peatland Officer Staff Time 
Recharge  

GREEN 

3
1 

Landscape and 
Nature Recovery 
CAPITAL 

117,400 Includes various consultants 
and surveys for projects 

GREEN 

3
2 

LNP CHALLENGE 
FUND - NATURE 
RECOVERY IN 
THE AMMAN 
VALLEY 

0 Project finished GREEN 

3
3 

National Peatland 
Action 
Programme SAF 

87,678 on-track GREEN 

3
4 

NRP 1: Peatland 
Restoration and 
Erosion 
Management 
SLSP 

312,000 Ontrack  GREEN 

3
5 

Nature Recovery 
Programme  

0 Project finished GREEN 

3
6 

Peatland 
Restoration 
funded by Welsh 
Water 

63,500 Waiting for confirmation from 
WW 

AMBER 

RAG Status Description 

GREEN 
Actions are on track with no 
delays/issues emerging 

AMBER  

Actions are experiencing minor 
delays/issues emerging and are 
being closely monitored 

RED 
Actions are experiencing significant 
delays/issues with improvement 
measures being put in place 

 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Budget Monitoring Report
	5 Budget Monitoring Report Q2 - Appendix One
	5 Budget Monitoring Report Q2 - Appendix Two

	6 Project Monitoring Report
	6 Projects Monitoring Report Q2 - Appendix One

	7 Corporate Plan and Projects Update

